
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 2, 2016 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the January 19, 2016 Board 
of City Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider the following proclamations: 
i. Proclaiming 2016 as the Year of “WE SUPPORT THE 

BADGE” in the City of Mandan. 
ii. Proclaiming May 21, 2016 as National Kids to Parks Day in 

the City of Mandan. 
2. Consider approval of a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land 

owned by Mike & Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource 
District.) 

3. Consider designating April 30-May 7, 2016 as “Spring Clean-Up 
Week” in the City of Mandan. 

4. Consider moving forward with the Big Sky Sanitary Sewer 
Extension project and approve the advertisement for bids. 

5. Consider moving forward with the Annual Water main Replacement 
project and approve the advertisement for bids. 

6. Consider the following games of chance: 
i. Our Place Motorcycle Club at HIT Inc. on March 19, 2016. 
ii. Ronald McDonald House at Signature Events on May 7, 

2016. 
7. Consider annual leave carryover for Engineering Project Manager, 

Kim Fettig.  
 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

February 2, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider approval of the Resolution creating district, Resolution 
approving Engineer’s Feasibility Report, Resolution approving of 
Plans and Specifications, Resolution determining sufficiency of 
petition, and Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street 
Improvement District No. 204, Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th 
Addition). 

2. Consider approving the  Feasibility Report and to approve of the 
Resolutions creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, 
approving Plans and Specifications, and Resolution of Necessity for 
Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 (Old Red 
Trail Reconstruction) 

3. Consider various recycling items. 
 

J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 
1. Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1233 

related to water meter installation. 
2. Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1234 An 

Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  Sections 4-1-3, 4-2-20(c) and 
4-2-20(d)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan 
relating to hours of alcohol sales. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. February 16, 2016 (5 p.m.) 
2. March 1, 2016 
3. March 15, 2016 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at Mandan City 
Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of citizens throughout 
the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are encouraged to make 
arrangements with the Board President or the City Administrator prior to the meeting. 
Comments should be made to the Board and not to individuals in the audience and be 
related to City operations and programs. The Board will not hear personal complaints 
against any person connected with the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the 
agenda, arrangements must be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board 
President. The Board reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public 
participation. The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 

Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 1 of 9 

 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:00 p.m. on January 19, 

2016 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.    

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Braun and Laber.  Department 

Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police Chief Ziegler, City Attorney Brown, 

City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, 

Business Development & Communications Director Huber, Planning & Engineering 

Director Froseth, Planner Decker, Project Manager Fettig, and Assessor Shaw. Absent:  

Building Official Lalim.   

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Laber requested that a second topic, 

“Safety Committee”, be added to Other Business on the Agenda. Commissioner Laber 

moved to approve the Agenda. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion 

received unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone interested to 

speak for or against any items on the Agenda to come forward.  A second announcement 

was made for anyone to come forward to speak on the Agenda.  Hearing none, this 

portion of the Public Communications was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission of 

January 5, 2016 regular meeting.  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the minutes as 

presented. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

1.         Consider Approving Special Assessment Policy.  Planning & Engineering Director 

Froseth stated that during the 2015 ND Legislative session the legislature added a new 

section to the ND Century Code that requires the governing body of a City with a 

population of more than 10,000 people to adopt a written Special Assessment Policy. 

City staff has worked on this since the legislature mandated this policy. Phyllis Hagar, 

(who has worked on Special Assessments with the City for over 20 years), and Kim 

Fettig, (who has worked with Special Assessments in some capacity for the last 10 years), 

have done the majority of the legwork on putting this policy together.  Their efforts 

included reaching out to other larger cities within the state to understand their policies. 

They also reviewed what the City of Mandan has typically done with past assessment 

projects while incorporating their own experience and recollection of those projects.  The 

proposed written policy is a formal reiteration of the methods that the City currently 

utilizes to assess costs to projects of benefiting projects.   Meetings have occurred with 

City staff and the City attorney to review and approve of the draft policy as presented.  

February 1, 2016, is the date the legislature designated as to when the policy is to be in 

place.  If the policy is deemed to be agreeable to the City Commission, Director Froseth 

requested it be approved.   

 

Commissioner Laber stated she has reviewed the policy and provided questions to 

Director Froseth previously. She noted that there is listed a flood protection provision and 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 2 of 9 

there is not a lot of assessment strategy for the flood protection now or into the future.  

Director Froseth stated that the section on flood protection is simple and covered in one 

sentence.  Those costs will have to be addressed at the time the flood district costs would 

occur.  He stated that the provision in the sentence is comparable to the way the storm 

sewer assessment district area would be based.  Commissioner Tibke commented that 

another meeting may be needed if the City decides to go forward with ideas for future 

assessment policies specific to new developments.  Director Froseth commented that the 

intent behind the creation of the policy is to assure there is fairness in place when special 

assessments are considered. 

 

Mayor Van Beek announced this is a public hearing and invited anyone interested to 

come forward to speak for or against the City of Mandan Special Assessment Policy.  A 

second announcement was made for anyone to come forward to speak on this matter. 

Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the City of Mandan Special Assessment Policy. 

Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.   Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

F.         BIDS: 

1.         Consider low bid for South Side Pump Station Emergency Generator.  Director of 

Public Works Wright stated that the emergency generator project was approved by the 

City Commission on August 18, 2015.  The generator will supply emergency power to 

the water pump station and Emergency 911 Communications tower located in the 

Plainview Heights area.  The project is part of a FEMA mitigation program wherein the 

City secured 75% federal funding assistance and 10% state funding assistance.  On 

January 12
th

 five bids were opened for the project with Skeel’s Electric, Bismarck, as the 

low bidder at $210,075 for the construction of the project with the Engineer’s Estimate at 

$215,000.  It was recommended to accept the low bid from Skeel’s Electric.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the bid to the low bidder Skeel’s Electric  

Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.   Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider approval of monthly bills. 

2.         Consider approval of pledge of securities reports as required by NDCC 21-04. 

3.         Consider advertisement for Wastewater Treatment Facilities purchase of a new 

skid-steer type machine.  

5.         Consider approval of first replat of Block 2, Sharon Heights Fourth Addition 

6.         Consider approval of the following abatements: (i) Correction in 2015 True & 

Full Value for Clifford Mund – 4404 Highland Road NW. (ii) Correction in 2015 True & 

Full Value for Dave & Kathleen Kottsick – 1704 Canyon Road SW. 

7.         Information item, Wastewater Treatment Facility Change Orders. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 3 of 9 

8.         Consider the request from the Finance Department to dispose old records in 

accordance with the North Dakota Records Management Program. 

9.         Consider appointing Attorney Patrick Brooke as additional alternate judge for 

Municipal Court. 

10.       Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for HIT, INC for property used 

as Group Home for Disabled Persons. 

11.       Consider Agreement for Cost-Share Reimbursement for Mandan Water System 

Improvements Project 2015. 

12.       Consider the Amendment to Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Traffic Safety Office. 

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Consent Agenda items No. 1 through No. 3 

and No. 5 through No. 12 with exception to No. 4 and No. 13 to be removed for 

discussion.   Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         Consider approval of an assignment and consent agreement with EVI Mandan 

Apartments LLC for TIF exemption for 200 W Main Street:  Commissioner Laber 

requested further information with regard to the transfer from the developer to another 

party and the rights and responsibilities that the City has with the original motion or the 

original TIF to the new owner.  City Attorney Brown explained that the tax exemption is 

actually granted to a project consisting of real estate, buildings, etc. and not to the 

developer itself.  There is no requirement in state law or in the City of Mandan agreement 

that would prohibit the original applicant from transferring it to another one. This allows 

all the benefits of the tax exemption and the responsibilities to flow with the assignment.  

EVI Apartments are stepping into the shoes of CRT Investments, the original applicant, 

and they will have the same responsibilities to complete the project.  It is a benefit to the 

project not to the developer.  Commissioner Rohr asked for clarification if this is for the 

transfer of the apartment portion.  Business Development & Communications Director 

Huber replied that is correct.  The Renaissance Zone exemption expired at the end of 

2015 for the building in its entirety which includes approximately 3,000 sq. ft. of 

commercial space at street level.  She stated that the apartment portion of the project will 

be subject to this agreement.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the assignment and consent agreement with EVI 

Mandan Apartments LLC for the TIF exemption for the apartment portion of 200 W 

Main Street.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

13.         Consider Public Comment letter to EPA concerning chemical applicator 

training rule change.  Director of Public Works Wright stated that the intent of the 

proposed letter is to serve as a public comment on behalf of the City of Mandan for the 

EPA rule changes for chemical applicator training.  The letter was prepared by Joe 

Camisa, the Code Enforcement  Officer, and the Weed Board recommended approval of 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 4 of 9 

the letter to be included in the EPA public comment process.  Commissioner Laber stated 

she was surprised at the increase in costs that NDSU Extension Service said that 

implementing this rule would be between $7.5 million to $15.6 million in North Dakota 

alone.  City Attorney Brown stated he has reviewed the letter and said that it will have 

significant cost impact on the City of Mandan and other cities throughout the state. EPA 

wants people to comment and this serves as our comment.  Joe Camisa stated that he has 

not discussed this matter with Morton County but he has met with the State Weed Board.  

He said there are very few counties that are in support of these rule changes.  Mandan 

will most likely join the group that has come out against these changes in addition to the 

Extension Service.  Director Wright said that currently the City has three current 

applicators with two additional being Joe Camisa and the arborist is the other one. So the 

City will have a total of five applicators.  Commissioner Laber requested staff make sure 

that Morton County is aware that this is coming to the forefront so they can also submit a 

letter to the EPA if they deem it appropriate.   

 

Joe Camisa said that at the Weed Board meeting there was much discussion and 

opposition to this.  He said that he has not spoken directly with any of the counties in 

relation to Mandan.  He said a good share of the costs will be related to sending out 

additional inspectors for requirements such as new reporting and new age requirements. 

There will be a new group of individuals that will now be required to do reporting 

resulting in additional costs for that.  EPA noted that there is about an $185,000 benefit to 

the state of North Dakota such as in worker comp claims and those types of benefits they 

will gain.  NDSU Extension Service and the Weed Control Association pointed out a 

huge contrast between the two. This will affect everyone across the nation, not just North 

Dakota.  Commissioner Rohr stated he is opposed to far reaching federal implementation 

because the rules and regulations can get very bureaucratic wherein they expect us to do 

things but they do not want to pay for it.  Anything the City can do to protest it, he stated 

he is in favor of it.  Camisa stated that the rationale for this rule change is to have tighter 

standards for EPA noting there has been work in progress to change the standards since 

the 1980’s.  In North Dakota, there have not been any pesticide related deaths for over 20 

years and according to the Extension Service, there is about an 85% compliance rate.  

They said these changes should not affect us (North Dakota) too much in compliance or 

for preventing more injuries. It is unknown how that will affect other states as to what 

kind of compliance rates they have.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve that the letter be sent to the US Environmental 

Protection Agency prior to the closing of the public comment period.  Commissioner 

Braun seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

H.        OLD BUSINESS: 

 

I.          NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Consider Mandan Growth Fund (MGF) Committee recommendations: Business 

Development & Communications Director Huber reviewed the following:  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 5 of 9 

            (i)  Policy changes for Storefront Improvement programs.  This matter has to do 

with compliance with the Business Incentive Accountability Law with regard to the 

Storefront Improvement Program. This requires all political subdivision grantors to enter 

into a Business Incentive Agreement (BIA) with any business that receive an incentive of 

$25,000 or more within a year. This item came up because the level of matching funds 

for the Storefront Improvement projects was increased in October 2013 from a maximum 

of $10,000 per property to a ceiling of $30,000 with a provision for consideration of as 

much as $60,000 for larger downtown corner properties with multiple stories. This would 

be incorporated into the storefront application information so that applicants are aware of 

the requirements.  City Attorney Brown had recommended extending the loan or claw 

back period for the storefront improvement recipient agreements to five years.  Currently 

the matching funds are completed for storefront projects as an interest free loan that is 

pro-rated and forgiven over the course of three years contingent upon project completion 

and the building remaining intact.  This will change that from three to five years with a 

longer period for that to remain intact.  With the BIA there is a provision in the public 

purposes for community development projects and they are going to have neither a goal 

of retaining nor creating jobs because the goal and incentive is being provided for by the 

property improvement itself.  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee recommended 

approval of these two changes for Business Incentive Agreement for storefront 

improvement recipients and to increase the forgivable loan period for the associated 

matching funds to five years.  

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the recommended changes in policies and 

procedures for the Storefront Improvement Program.   Commissioner Laber seconded the 

motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

            (ii) Storefront Improvement Application for Schmidt Car Sales at 3420 Memorial 

Highway.  Business Development & Communications Director Huber stated that Dustin 

Schmidt is proposing to make improvements to the property located at 3420 East 

Memorial Highway.  The business was previously called Rohrich Auto Sales.   

 

Mr. Schmidt will be investing nearly $132,000 for exterior improvements and also an 

entire interior remodel for a total project cost of approximately $275,000.  The 

application provides plans to replace siding with new sheet metal, colored stucco, 

installing additional windows including front display windows, an automatic door and 

landscaping.  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee recommended approval of up to 

$30,000 in matching funds for the Storefront Improvement project by Schmidt Sales LLP 

at 3420 Memorial Highway.  Mr. Schmidt and the contractor were present to answer any 

questions.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve providing up to $30,000 in matching funds for 

the Storefront Improvement Project by Schmidt Sales LLP at 3420 Memorial Highway. 

Commissioner Laber seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 6 of 9 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. Attorney Brown stated that Mr. 

Schmidt and his companies are clients of his but stated that he was not involved in this 

application.   

 

2.         Consider appointment of Shadd Piehl to the Dakota Media Access Board of 

Directors.  Commissioner Laber said that she is a member of the Dakota Media Access 

Board as a function of being on the Mandan City Commission.  A radio station is being 

organized and it will be found at FM 102.5 with a “go-live” date at the end of January.  It 

was suggested to organize an Advisory Committee.  It was felt that the Radio Station 

should have a representative on the DMA Board of Directors.  It was recommended to 

appoint Shadd Piehl to the Dakota Media Access Board of Directors.  

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the appointment of Shadd Piehl to the Dakota 

Media Access Board of Directors with a term ending July 1, 2020.  Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Consider request to advertise for Request for Proposals for Professional 

Architectural Services for Public Works Expansion.  Director of Public Works Wright 

stated the City Commission approved the partial use of HUB City funds for construction 

of additional storage, office and mechanic space and a salt/sand storage facility at the 

existing Public Works Shop.  This expansion will cover immediate needs for storage and 

office space.  He explained that the first step is to advertise for architectural services.  He 

reviewed the timeline of securing services commencing on January 22, 2016 up through 

March 15, 2016.  At that time the proposals would be reviewed and a firm would be 

chosen and submitted to the City Commission at the March 15, 2016 meeting.  Director 

Wright recommended moving forward with the advertisement for this project.  

 

Commissioner Laber stated that the land is being used well for these projects.  She 

wondered if one month would be sufficient time to determine architectural services since 

there are so many components to the project.  Director Wright stated the timeline 

presented is not for the design of the project. Rather, prospective architects will give 

examples of what they have done in the past and the City would determine if they are 

capable of doing this project.  When the firm has been chosen, then the design of the 

building will be taken into consideration.  Commissioner Rohr stated there have been 

discussions on the expansion project over the last 4-5 years.    

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve to advertise for Professional Architectural 

Services for the expansion of the existing Public Works Facility.  Commissioner Tibke 

seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 7 of 9 

J.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:    

1.         First consideration of Ordinance 1233 related to water meter installation.  

Planner Decker explained that this is a request for a correction.  He explained that when 

the City went from the old Code to the new Code, a sentence was added about requiring 

contractors to follow our standards for installing water meters.  That sentence got left out 

when the new Code was added so this represents language to correct that inadvertent 

omission.  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 

1233 related to water meter installation. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion. Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.        Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance No. 1224 renaming street 

in Lakewood Commercial Park Fourth Addition. Commissioner Tibke moved to approve 

the Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance No. 1224 renaming street in 

Lakewood Commercial Park Fourth Addition. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion. 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 

 

3.         Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance No. 1225 amending 

Section 105-4-4 of the municipal code relating to floodplains.  Commissioner Laber 

moved to approve the Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance No. 1225 

amending Section 105-4-4 of the municipal code relating to floodplains. Commissioner 

Tibke seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         First consideration of Ordinance 1234 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

Sections 4-1-3, 4-2-20(c) and 4-2-20(d)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Mandan relating to hours of alcohol sales. City Administrator Neubauer stated that when 

the topic of when alcohol can be sold early on Sundays, we did a review of the City’s 

Code and determined that the language indicated that establishments could be open the 

same hours that is allowed by state law which is they can be open from 11 a.m. to 2 a.m.  

Bismarck has gone with closing at 1 a.m.  The language being proposed includes being 

open at 11 a.m. on Sunday if the establishment wishes to be open at that time, but closing 

at 1 a.m.  There have been a couple of inquiries about the 11 a.m. time. However, no one 

has expressed interest in staying open until 2 in the morning.  It was recommended to 

insert the actual hours rather than as “stated in state law”.  Commissioner Rohr moved to 

approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1234 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

Sections 4-1-3, 4-2-20(c) and 4-2-20(d)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Mandan relating to hours of alcohol sales.  Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion. 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  No; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 8 of 9 

5.          Consider for approval the Resolution amending fees and charges administered 

by the Public Works Department.  Director of Public Works Wright stated that when 

reviewing the fees and charges it was decided that some changes and clarifications 

needed to be made.  The major changes were for the weed control and grass cutting fees 

and the cleanup of private lots that are not within compliance to the weed and grass 

cutting ordinance.  The previous fee for that was $150/hr., with a minimum of one hour 

charge. There will now be a $150 flat fee charged in addition to the hourly fee of $150 

for every time the City goes onto that private lot to mow or maintain weed control.  There 

were also a few minor changes to equipment rates that were a little out of line from 

private contractors.  Commissioner Laber requested that a spreadsheet be prepared 

indicating the actual costs of these services as to what it normally costs in comparison to 

market rate costs of services when provided by the City.  Mayor Van Beek clarified that 

the $150 rate is above market rate costs. He explained that the City is not in the business 

of taking care of resident’s lawn mowing and other services. So the (inflated) rates were 

determined based on encouraging citizens to take care of their own properties.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Resolution amending fees and charges 

administered by the Public Works Department.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the 

motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

K.       OTHER BUSINESS:   

1.        Mayor Van Beek announced that a Corridor Improvements Study Public 

Involvement meeting will be held in the Veterans’ Memorial Conference Room of City 

Hall on January 26
th

 from 5:30-7:30 with a presentation at 6:00 p.m.   

 

2.         Safety Committee:  Commissioner Laber stated that the City of Mandan has a 

Safety Committee that meets once a month.  Recently some of the Safety Committee 

duties have been officially assigned to certain members of staff.  There has been some 

fluctuation as far as what kinds of Workforce Safety rates and questions regarding the 

Committee as being effective.  She stated she looks at it as being part of a Finance 

portfolio because there are financial ramifications and that touches all departments within 

the City.  Sandy Tibke, Finance portfolio holder, indicated she would be willing to sit on 

the Safety Committee representing the City Commission to make sure the transition goes 

well.  Julie Frye was requested to add Sandy Tibke to the Safety Committee agendas 

going forward.      

 

Commissioner Laber moved to have the Finance portfolio holder member of the City 

Commission sit on the Safety Committee.  Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion. 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Tibke moved to adjourn the meeting at  5:50 p.m. Commissioner Laber 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of January 19, 2016 

Page 9 of 9 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 

 



IConsent No.1 i

CITY OJ'
MANDAN

Mf\NDAN CITY HAl.l· 205 2nd Avcml(-) NW
MANDAN, NORTHDAKOTA 5l35!;4

70"1·667...'215 '" F!I,'(.: 701-(lf}1·.J223 • www.cityofmandan.com

cnv DlPARTMI:NT$

AOM1NIS'rR/iriON 61'>~·J215
A%l:SSIN('JllUllDING INS\'f:CflON 667·3230
I)USINUSSO~VROP,"l~Nr 667·3'lU::;
C~MHF.RY ('6]·60,1-1
£NGINHRlPlJ\NNtNG &. l.ONIN(. 667-3'215
HNAN(.F, 661-:m.l
fiRE 667·37.88
1,IUMAN I!.~SOUllCl:S 6(,7·)117
l,\NDJ'lll (,(,7·016·1
MUNICtPAlCOURf 6(,7·3270
I'OUCE 667')'155
PUUllCWO~KS 667·)2·10
WASnWi\JERTRr:MM~Nr 6&7-3278
SPEClAtI\5S(SSM(NT5 (,1)7-3271
UTIliTY t!IU,INC 661·J1I9
WAfF.RnUMMwr 6Cii'·)7.i'5

The Year of "WE SUPPORT THE BADGE" Proclamation· 2016

Whereas all citizens deserve to feel safe and protected in their homes, schools,
businesses and communities; and

Whereas, law enforcement professionals deal with many difficult situations in their
efforts to protect citizens from harm; and

Whereas the WE SUPPORT THE BADGE initiative targets the development of
strategies that will lead to the recruitment of individuals to serve in our
communities as law enforcement professionals and to engage students in
considering careers in law enforcement; and

Whereas the initiative works to bring diverse community groups, businesses and
individuals together in recognition of the role law enforcement plays daily
in their personal and professional lives; and

Therefore, be it resolved that the Board of City Commissioners of the City of
Mandan and I, Arlyn Van Beek, Mayor of the City of Mandan, North
Dakota do hereby proclaim the year of 2016 as

The Year of "WE SUPPORT THE BADGE"

in the City of Mandan, ND, and do encourage all citizens to support local law
enforcement, recognize their efforts to make our communities safe for all citizens regardless of
race, religion, gender or culture, and to honor and respect those who serve and protect.

Signed this 2nd day of February, 2016

Arlyn Van Beek, President
Board of City Commissioners

Attest:

James Neubauer, City Administrator



IConsent No.1 ii

CITV()lI'ARTMINTS

" W'iER ETI IE WEST B EGIN SI
•

M/\ NDAN CITY HJ\l.L · 205 2nd Avenue NW
MANDAN, NO RTH DAKOl i \ 58554

70 )·(,(,7-3215 • fA X: 70 /·667·3213 • www.cltyofmanda n.com

National Kids to Parks Day Proclamation
Saturday, May 21,2016

ADMINISIRAIION 667· J 21S
ASSlSSING/~ UII.()ING INSl'lC IiON 667-3130
~USINlSS IJI:Vl.lOI',\\ l Nr 6(,7·J '185
CEMI:H RV 667·60olסi
lI':GIN[[R1I'I.ANNII':G & ZONING 667·]225
IINANCL 667·J2 1J
li RE 667-)28 8
II LJ~MN RESOLJRGS (,I,7·J 217
IANDml 667·01ll-l
MUNICII't\!. COU RT 667-J270
roucr C,67-J -155
I'lJlIUC WORKS (,1,7-]2 ,10
WASTlWATE RTREAIMI-NI 667.]278
51'I-OAI.A5SI-SSMlN fS 667·J271
llTlU IV ~II.UNG 667·J219
WAI1 R WlMMl Nf (,67·.1275

WH ER EAS , May 2 1" , 20 16 is the sixth Kid s to Parks Day or ganized and
laun ched by the National Park Trust; and

WH ER EAS, Kids to Parks Day empowers kids and encourages families to get
outdoors and vis it Am er ica 's parks ; and

WH ER EAS, it is important to introduce a new generation to our nation ' s parks
because of the decline in Park attendance over the last decades; and

WH EREAS, we should encourage children to lead a more active lifestyle to
combat the issues of chi ldhood obesi ty, diabete s mellitus, hypertension and
hypercholesterolemia; and

WH ER EAS , Kids to Parks Day is open to all children and adults across the
country to encourage a large and diverse group of participants; and

WH ER EAS , Kids to Park s Day will broaden children's appreciation lor nature
and the outdoors; and

NOW THEREFORE, as the Mayor of the City of Mandan, NO , I do hereby
pro claim to part icipate in National Kids to Parks Day. I urge res idents of Mandan to
make time May 2 1, 20 16 to take the ch ildren in their lives to a neighborhood, state or
national park.

S igned this 2nd day of February, 20 16

Arlyn Van Beck, President
Board of City Commissioners

Attest :

James Neubauer, City Administrator



 

 

                                              

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value 

for land owned by Mike & Gwen Brady. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #65-5735000; 

Lot A of NW1/4SW1/4SW1/4 Sec. 26-139-81; City ID # 2876 

 

Reason for abatement:  This vacant land received the standard vacant land value 

increase in 2015 the same as all vacant land. This was a standard increase and we had no 

documentation on the land use. Documentation was received in January from Toman 

Engineering proving the use of this land.  

This land is used as the Interior Drainage System for the Lower Heart River Water 

Resource District. This are is used to store the city’s storm water during the spring runoff 

when the storm water outfall valves are closed due to high water levels in the Heart River. 

This property cannot be used for any other purpose.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:    Abatement Application, Letter from Toman Engineering Company 

explaining the use of land, maps showing the area, Property record sheet, printout of 

Morton County Tax Statement 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $757. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: January 25, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw 

SUBJECT: Mike & Gwen Brady;  

Lower Heart River Water Resource District 

 

  

Consent No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 2 of 11 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve the 2015 value change for the 

vacant land being used by the Lower Heart River Water Resource District.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve the 2015 value change for the vacant 

land being used by the Lower Heart River Water Resource District.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 3 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 4 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 5 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 6 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 7 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 8 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 9 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 10 of 11 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for land owned by Mike & 

Gwen Brady (Lower Heart River Water Resource District) 

Page 11 of 11 

 

 

 
 



IConsent NO.3

MANDAN CITY HALl. - 20:; 2nd Avenue NW

,"IANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 51355'1
701·('(,7-:3:115 • HX, 701-667-J!.?3 0 www.citYO(lllillldmu:ol\l

__~(~:If~YDEI'/\i!l:vll',NlS _

AOMINISTlMTION 6(>7-31.15
,ISSISSINC!IlUIUIING INSI'ECnON 667·]1.30
IILJSINf;SS nEVI10I'MI:N I 6(,/·.1,105
Cl:MEHRY 66J·6IH'!
IN(;INI:IWl'l.ANNINC & I.ONING 667·17.?-5
FlNt\NCl 661·]21l
FIRE (,61-JlIW
IltlMt\N I~ESOlJl(US (,f,I-PI?
IANDFlI.I. (,6?·0IM
MUNICIPN c(Jtml (,6/·)210
POLICE 66/.J·I:;',
1'1111 Lie WORXS 6(,1·.17-10
WASIfWAHR lRb\lMI'N r (,6/·nn'
SI'f.C1AI. ASSISSMl,NIS (,(,I·J711
IHILllY 1I11.I.ING ()(,7 ·:17.1 'J
\oVA!lI~ll·ut\n...~[Nr r)(~/·.J'l.i'S

p

A
CITY
AN

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, Each spring a special week has been set aside to encourage city
wide clean-up effort; and

WHE~REAS, Experience has shown that the efforts put forth during this week
help to prevent accidents and tires and docs much to promote a
clean, attractive community; and

WHEREAS, The citizens of Mandan have participated in this program to the
common benefit of the individual property owners and the
community as a whole.

NOW THEREFORE, I, ARLYN VAN REEK, President of the Board of City
Commissioners ofthe City of Mandan, do hereby proclaim the week of April 30

th
- May

7th, 2016 to be

"SPRING CLEAN-UP WEEK"

In the City of Mandan and do urge all citizens to participate in the efforts to keep Mandan
the clean and attractive community that it is.

IN WrTNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City
of Mandan to be affixed on February 2 11d

, 2016.

---- ~--~~------

Arlyn Van Beck, President
Board of City Commissioners

Attest:

James Neubauer City Administrator



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: 

Request to move forward with the Big Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension project and approve 

the advertisement for bids. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

The Big Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension is part of abandoning the existing temporary lift 

station that was installed to develop this subdivision.  Development between Big Sky and 

Sunset Dr. has made it possible to connect the existing sewer main in Big Sky to the new 

sewer main installed in 2015.  Extending the sewer main will eliminate lift station 

upgrades to pumps, alarm system and pumping costs. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Advertisement for Bid, Project Design Sheet 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The project would be funded by our Annual Pipe, Manhole and Lift Station Replacement 

funds within our Capital Improvements Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

To move forward with project and approve the request to advertise for bids for the Big 

Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Move to move forward with project and approve the request to advertise for bids for the 

Big Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: January 25, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works Dept. 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright 

SUBJECT: Consider moving forward with the Big Sky 

Sanitary Sewer Extension project and approve the 

advertisement for bids. 

 

  

Consent Agenda #4 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider moving forward with the Big Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension project 

and approve the advertisement for bids. 

Page 2 of 3 

 

Advertisement for Bids 

Big Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension 

City of Mandan 

 

 

 

The City of Mandan Public Works Department will receive sealed bids at Mandan City 

Hall located at 205 2
nd

 Ave NW, Mandan, ND 58554 until March 3, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 

CDT at which time bids will be publicly opened and reviewed. All bidders are invited to 

be present at the opening of the proposals. 

  

All bids shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for Big Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension” 

with the name of the person, firm or corporation submitting the bid. Bids shall include a 

copy of his contractor’s license or certificate of renewal and contain a bidder’s bond in 

the amount of five (5) percent of the bid. Bids must be submitted on forms provided by 

the City of Mandan Public Works Department and in accordance with detailed 

specifications and conditions therein contained. Copies of the bid proposal forms and 

detailed specifications may be obtained from the Mandan Public Works Department at 

411 6
th

 Avenue SW, Mandan, ND or at www.cityofmandan.com.  

 

The City of Mandan Public Works Department reserves the right to hold all bids for a 

period of thirty (30) days after the date fixed for opening thereof and to reject any and or 

all bids and to waive irregularities whenever it is for the best interest of the City of 

Mandan. 

 

Date: February 2, 2016 

 

 

 

City of Mandan 

Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

 

Legal Publications:  February 12, 2016 and February 19, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider moving forward with the Big Sky Sanitary Sewer Extension project 

and approve the advertisement for bids. 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: 

Request to move forward with the annual water main replacement project and approve the 

advertisement for bids. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

The 2016 water main replacement project will be a continuation of last year’s project, generally 

located in the northeast part of Mandan along 2
nd

 St NE from 9
th
 Ave to and including 4

th
 Ave 

NE.  This project will stay ahead of Phase II of the SID in this same area that was started in 2015.  

A total of 9 blocks of old ductile iron water mains will be replaced along with valves, hydrants 

and water service connections.  Lead service lines and bad curb stops will be replaced as needed.  

If total project is over our available funds the project will be scaled back within the budget. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Advertisement for Bid, Project Design Sheet 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The project would be funded by our Annual Water main Replacement funds within our Capital 

Improvements Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

To move forward with project and approve the request to advertise for bids for the Annual Water 

main Replacement Project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Move to move forward with project and approve the request to advertise for bids for the Annual 

Water main Replacement Project. 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: January 25, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works Dept. 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright 

SUBJECT: Consider moving forward with the annual water 

main replacement project and approve the 

advertisement for bids. 

 

  

Consent Agenda #5 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider moving forward with the annual water main replacement project and 

approve the advertisement for bids. 

Page 2 of 3 

 

2016 Proposal for Equipment and Labor 

 To Install Various Water Mains within the City of Mandan 

 

 

 

The City of Mandan Public Works Department will receive sealed bids at Mandan City 

Hall located at 205 2
nd

 Ave NW, Mandan, ND 58554 until March 3, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. 

CDT at which time bids will be publicly opened and reviewed. All bidders are invited to 

be present at the opening of the proposals. 

  

All bids shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for Equipment and Labor to Install 

Various Water Mains within the City” with the name of the person, firm or corporation 

submitting the bid. Bids shall include a copy of his contractor’s license or certificate of 

renewal and contain a bidder’s bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the bid. Bids 

must be submitted on forms provided by the City of Mandan Public Works Department 

and in accordance with detailed specifications and conditions therein contained. Copies of 

the bid proposal forms and detailed specifications may be obtained from the Mandan 

Public Works Department at 411 6
th

 Avenue SW, Mandan, ND or at 

www.cityofmandan.com. 

 

The City of Mandan Public Works Department reserves the right to hold all bids for a 

period of thirty (30) days after the date fixed for opening thereof and to reject any and or 

all bids and to waive irregularities whenever it is for the best interest of the City of 

Mandan. 

 

Date: February 2, 2016 

 

 

 

City of Mandan 

Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

 
Legal Publications:  February 12, 2016 and February 19, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider moving forward with the annual water main replacement project and 

approve the advertisement for bids. 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 



LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 17926 (10/2012)

Type: o Local Permit *0 Charity Local Permit

1Consent No. 6i

Permit Number

2016·13
Name of Organization

Our Place Motorc cle Club
Date(s} Authorized (Read lnsfrucflon 2)

Check the Garne(s) Authorized:

o Paddlewheels"

Zip Code

58501·0000

o Twenty-one·

County

o Poker'

Business Phone Number to 3/19/2016
Ending

o Sports Poolo Calendar Raffleo Rafneo Bingo

Contact Person

Tom Warner

Site Name
Hitlnc

City

Mandan

Mailing Address

800 N 28th sr

RestriCtion:

Auditor TelephoneNumber

(701) 667-32501/28/2016

Requirement: For a "Charity Local Perr it," the organization must file a "Report on a Charity Local Permit<' with Ihe city or county auditor.i!lli! Office of
AUorney General withi days of the event.

Date

Please see the instructio on the backside of t . form On to complete the Permit.
For a raffle or calendar raffle, read "Information Required to be Preprinted on a Standard Raffle Ticket" below.

_____________________~~ngthi~~ _

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price;
4. Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authoriZing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win;
7, Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle. if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a.statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least

'_'_" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize;
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars.



Charity Local Permit (one event per year)~ocal Permit

APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN 9338 (9-2009)

Application for:

Name of Non-profit Orqanization oate(s) of Activity

O~I'" fICLC-e... /1 01--0 V'- /,"'.'y dc, ChJD ')·-/9-/0 to
Person Responsible for the Gaming Operation and the Disbursement of Net Income Title Business Phone Number

TOl'V\. Lv-a V'l'\ <20/" 1f> c.aJ It 1/'i!:>¥'-
Business Address City . State Zip Code

r;OU ;t,/ ')..'3 j:!) 5r t, '.:; I1'l4 «:«:k. (1/'0 S6rp(
Mailing Address (if different) City State Zip Code

Name of Sile Where Game(s) will be Conducted Site Address

f-J r't- ;rVIC- '-6' flO (;~I'lJ e r: iJr $
City State IZiPcade County

f1ti h j 61 '" /,,/.J rd5'F't. ~t'vfc;"7
Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit.

o Bingo lStRaffle Dcalendar Raffle D Sports Pool o Poker' o Twenty-one • o Paddlewheels'

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of
Prize

Rq {.fe-( L..fJ.- &/ Tv !J '-( '7. q '1

fJ:\AfiLt~d f~JfrJ )<"~5-/r)VL ?(}o.r}VSIJ",

IZcJrI,.d ftktlY -.J<..tq /I, '",.., 'soo. ~o

.~{j PI- le- t! tiF+- ~vet... '){).(r"v
RCtf(f e- c.! i: L~ Sl).VU

Game Type Description of Prize
Retail Value of

Prize

, (Limit$12,000peryear)

Total: $ l?- q. ~.q,q

Intended uses of gaming proceeds: Pt? "11'1. t--i(JVI
-;..,-._:.:::....-.;..::.---~_......:...--'---~-------------------

Does the organization presently have a state gaming license? MNo DYes - If "Yes," the organization is not eligible for a local permit Of charity local
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1.aOo-:f2t9240.

Has the organization received a charity local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30?\@ No DYes - If "Yes,"
the organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit.

Has the organization received a local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? t/t No DYes - If "Yes,"
indicate the total value of all prizes prevlously awarded: $ . Thisamountis part of the totalprize limit of $12,000peryear.

Sign~r~ ~~i~S Top Executive Official

p~/J~~--------
BUSiness Phone Number



IConsent No. 6ii
LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
UCENSING SECTION
SFN 17926 (10/2012)

For a raffle or calendar raffie, read "Information Required to be Preprinted on a Standard RaffleTicket"below.

,<>,yr'l'j'li
,.

Type: o Local Permit * 0 Charity Local Permit
PermitNumber

2016-12
Name of Organization Date(s) Authorized (Readinstruction 2)

Ronald Mcdonald House
Contact Person 811"inp.~~ Phone Number 5/7/2016 to 5/7/2016

Renee Murrish Beginning Ending
Mailing Address City IState Zip Code

804 Canyon Dr Mandan ND 58554·0000
Site Name SiteAddress

SignatureEvents 804 Can on Dr
City State ZIP Code County

Mandan NO 58554-00( Morton
Check the Game(s)Authorized: • Poker,Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conductedonly by a CharityLocalPermit.

o Bingo o Raffle o Calendar Raffie o Sports Pool o Poker' o Twenly-one· o Paddlewheels'

Restriction:

Requirement For a "CharityLocalPermit," the organizationmust fifea "Reporton a Charity Local Permil"wilh the cityor countyauditorllllil Officeof
Allorney Generalwi~ 30 days of the even~

Date
Si~lYAy~7or Printed Name of City or CountyAuditor AuditorTelephone Numoor

1/28/2016 Patrick B Haug (701) 667-3250

Please see the Instrucliop(on the backsidejrl'thi(i' form6il how to complete the Permit.

cuI alongthis line---------_ ......... _-----"'-------_..-......_--------------""'"'--------------_ ........-----

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price;
4. Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed organization. print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win;
7. Date and time of the drawing or draWings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation. a statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10, If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age. a statement that a person must be at least

'_'.:" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize;
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize. a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars.



APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFlCE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN 9338 (9-2009)

Application for: 1RI Local Permit ,.0 Charity Local Permit (one event per year)

Name of Non-profit Organization Date(s) of Activity

Ronald Mcdonald Home 5/7/2016 to 5/7/2016
Person Responsible for the Gaming Operation and the Disbursement or Net Income TItle Business Phone Number

Renee Murrish Owner
Business Address City State Zip Code

804 Canyon Road Sw Mandan ND 58554-0000
Mailing Address (if different) City Stale Zip Code

Name of Site Where Game(s) will be Conducted Site Address

804 Canyon Road SW 804 Canyon Road Sw
City State IZip Code Countyr

Mandan NO 58554-0000 Morlan
Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: * Poker. Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit.

DBingo lRJ Raffle oCalendar Raffle D Sports Pool o Poker * o Twenty-one * o Paddlewheels *

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of

Prize Prize

Raffie 1 Night Stay $189.00

Raffle 1 Night Stay $225.00

~-\~ '.
1:\."",- ~k-...\.\. \.\..<~ ~~. 0L\--""""" ('

·~\\J,.rv.. \ L r'J..
~, ~. ~0 \(~'\/\ . \\ \I'--. 01'{"\.. \\ :'\{'\.\ \.. '\ ~()\ If).•0. ........ (, \-\ \ l.. '" ~

~~"\ ..'" "'{'),.

I' ~, \. '",\\ "<-.~ \>; ,% \.\.: .:»: "",1'1>. 'l. 'J..c\l ~-\-:'-:.
\'~\- ~\ .... ~.\.~,,0-.'II~""" ~K~", <,:--,0--, <:"\0.-

(~

.~'* ~()\\v , \~\~ \ij\~ \:f.- ~r-,
,

~~c\.'-.J-.. - 1'.\'0-.n

~ ~\\~~(~ ~ \. ·--\2,r~.~\ ~ r-, <:"\\.~ "'l. ~ -r [; D.G\\ ~~J) IH \\ Y\.r~

~~ "'~~ \..,\.& rJ'(\ ~,-\5) 1..0~ ~~~\-\- Total:
(Umlt$12,000 per y~"r)

.'" C:::f.'::)'~ ,
,r'

$} r 414.00_.
.e:n~~ \.

.C

. t U <0rI..Ir . \::t+\.Ld ' \.0(AJ(\lf'1Jx t:D..'1<," b~ ':)',~-hJ..."&- ~U~,-t-5,
Intended usesof gaming proceeds; A portion of the proceeds will go to the Ronald McDonaRi Home
to help families who are unable to pay for their stay altha home.

Does (he orqanizatlon presently have a state gaming license? [RI No 0 Yes - If "Yes," the orqanizatlon is not eligible for a local permit Or charity local
permit and should call the Offi ce of Attomey General at 1-800·326-9240.

Has the organization received a charity local permit from Ihis or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 3D?~ No DYes - If "Yes,"
the organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity tocal permit.

Has the organization received a local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? IE} No DYes - If "Yes,"
indicate lhe total value of allprizes previously awarded: $ . This amount is part of the total pdze limit of $12,000 peryear.

Business Phone NumberTitle

Owner1/27/2016

DatefOrganization's Top Executive Official

L..-~~,/-l".d-,--_l~f<::",,*,,~"--"-"'-4.~-"'::::"' -L .....I.-.- ...L- _



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider allowing additional annual leave carryover. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  In 2015 Kim earned many compensatory hours by 

working over 40 hours during busy weeks. These busier weeks were primarily when our 

office was planning the downtown street improvement district, and during weeks when 

processing the thirteen special assessment districts that went through in the fall of 2015 

picked up administratively. As a result, that compensatory time was used in 2015 and her 

already over 120 hours accumulation of vacation time was not used until later in 2015. 

Kim has been using some of her earned vacation time in December and January, but still 

has approximately 55 that would be unused by her anniversary date of February 14
th 

if not 

taken before then.  

 

Because our office is busy with planning projects for this upcoming construction season, 

and because we have a vacancy in the Engineering Tech. position since Rob left the office 

in December, I (Justin Froseth) would prefer some hours be carried over as opposed to 

Kim being out of the office all of next week. This agrees with Kim’s preference, to work 

Monday through Wednesday of next week and taking vacation days Thursday and Friday. 

She would also take approximately 10 hours of vacation this Thursday and Friday.  

 

The requested hours would be the approximately 55 hours projected to be over, minus the 

26 hours she plans to take in the next two weeks for a total of 29 hours to carry over.   
 

 

Going forward, I (Justin) have verbally mentioned to Planning and Engineering staff that 

I intend to draft an office policy, in consultation with Human Resources, to better track 

the hours of overtime that are being worked and institute any rules that may be required 

so that we don’t run into a staff shortage issue at critical times that can only be remedied 

by such a request in the future.   

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: February 2, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth 

SUBJECT: Unused Annual Leave Carryover 

 

  

ADDED 2/2/2016 Consent Agenda No. 7  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Kim Fettig Unused Annual Leave Carryover 

Page 2 of 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   n/a 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend that the annual leave carryover be allowed.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move that Mrs. Kim Fettig be allowed to carryover an 

additional 29 hours of annual leave for a one year period. 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To create and allow the assessments of specials related to, 

authorize the required paperwork for the requested project, and allow for the project to be 

bid. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The developer of Lakewood 9
th

 is requesting that 

the City allow the special assessment of street costs to the benefitting properties for the 

development of Lakewood 9th Addition. City staff has reviewed the plans and 

specifications and believe they are sufficient to advertise this project to bid.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Resolution creating district 

2. District Map 

3. Itemized Project Estimate 

4. Engineer’s Report 

5. Resolution Approving Engineer’s Report 

6. Resolution of plans and specs 

7. Petitions 

8. Resolution determining sufficiency of petition 

9. Feasibility Report 

10. Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bids 

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: January 28, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider approving the Resolution creating 

district, approving Resolution approving 

Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans 

and Specifications, approving Resolution 

determining sufficiency of petition, approving 

feasibility report and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement 

District No. 204, Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 

9th Addition). 

 

  

New Business No. 1 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 2 of 21 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Based on the estimate of cost included with your documentation, 

the cost of the project would be $2,218,163.00, engineering and administration will add 

$776,357.05, bringing the total to $2,994,520.05. These items would be entirely special 

assessed to the benefitting properties.  This assessment district has commercial, mixed 

family and residential parcels within this district.  An approximate unit cost of specials 

would be $17,300.00 with the mixed use and commercial lots receiving more units of 

cost. 

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports moving forward with the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the Resolution creating district, approve 

Resolution approving Engineer’s Report, approve Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approve Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approve feasibility report and 

approve Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 

202, Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9
th

 Addition). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 3 of 21 

 

RESOLUTION CREATING 

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 204   

Project No. 2016-06 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 

 1.  There is hereby created Street Improvement District No. 204 (the 

“District”)(Project# 2016-06) of the City of Mandan for the purpose of making an 

improvement project of the type specified in Section 40-22-01(2), N.D.C.C., to improve 

those parts of the municipal street system listed below.  The improvement to said streets 

within this improvement district shall include, but not be limited to, Amity Circle SE, 

34th Avenue SE and 21st Street SE, and includes street construction, installation of curb 

and gutter, asphalt street, storm sewer, street lights, chip seal and related work.   

 

 2.  Consultation with respect thereto having been had with the City Engineer, as to 

the property to be benefitted by said improvement project and the most practical size, 

form and location of said District, said District shall include all the lots, tracts and parcels 

of land lying within the City of Mandan and its additions within the following boundary 

lines: namely:   

 

A portion of Government lot 1 and Government lot 2, of Section 1, Township 138 North, 

Range 81 West of the fifth Principal Meridian, City of Mandan, Morton County, North 

Dakota, more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the northwest corner of Government lot 2 of said Section 1; thence S 

00°09'05” E a distance of 40.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence from said point of 

beginning, N 89°45'36” E a distance of 2353.73 feet to the west line of Mandan 

Municipal First Addition as described in document no. 409901 recorded at the Morton 

County recorders office; thence along said west line of Mandan Municipal First Addition, 

S 00°04'18” E a distance of 250.11 feet to the southwest corner of said Mandan 

Municipal First Addition which is also the northwest corner of Lakewood Commercial 

Park Fourth Addition as described in document no. 415129 recorded at the Morton 

County recorders office; thence along the north line of lot 1, block 1 of said Lakewood 

Commercial Park Fourth Addition, N 89°47’07” E a distance of 249.87 feet to the 

northeast corner of said lot 1, block 1 of Lakewood Commercial Park Fourth Addition; 

thence along the west right of way line of 40th Avenue Southeast, S 00°03’49” E a 

distance of 285.77 feet to the southeast corner of said lot 1, block 1 of Lakewood 

Commercial Park Fourth Addition; thence S 00°03’49” E a distance of 80.00 feet to the 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 4 of 21 

 

northeast corner of lot 1, block 2 of said Lakewood Commercial Park Fourth Addition; 

thence along said west right of way line of 40th Avenue Southeast, S 00°03’49” E a 

distance of 461.70 feet to the southeast corner of said lot 1, block 2 of Lakewood 

Commercial Park Fourth Addition; thence along the south line of said lot 1, block 2, 

Lakewood Commercial Park Fourth Addition, N 89°28’26” W a distance of 250.27 feet 

to the southwest corner of said lot 1, block 2 of Lakewood Commercial Park Fourth 

Addition which is also the north line of Lakewood Commercial Park Fifth Addition as 

described in document no. 441016 recorded at the Morton County recorders office; 

thence along said north line of Lakewood Commercial Park Fifth Addition, N 89°28'26” 

W a distance of 50.75 feet to the northwest corner of said Lakewood Commercial Park 

Fifth Addition; thence along the west line of said Lakewood Commercial Park Fifth 

Addition, S 00°03'44” E a distance of 366.19 feet to the northwest corner of Lakewood 

8th Addition as described in document no. 466871 recorded at the Morton County 

recorders office; thence along the north boundary of said Lakewood 8th Addition as 

follows: thence S 89°04'27” W a distance of340.25 feet; thence N 00°53'15” W a distance 

of 104.48 feet; thence N 19°37'09” W a distance of 74.53 feet; thence N 37°59'16” W a 

distance of 74.67 feet; thence N 55°52'21" W a distance of 74.63 feet; thence N 67°16'37” 

W a distance of 457.15 feet; thence N 85°06'47” W a distance of 82.03 feet; thence S 

72°15'50” W a distance of 81.13 feet; thence S 48°13'06” W a distance of 203.23 feet; 

thence N 84°12'33” W a distance of 150.19 feet; thence N 45°08'39” W a distance of 

502.11 feet; thence s 44°52'39” w a distance of 129.92 feet; thence s 14°53'07” w a 

distance of 76.21 feet; thence S 44°52'16” W a distance of 225.35 feet to the east line of 

lot 3, block 4 of Midway First addition as described in document no. 311599 recorded at 

the Morton County recorders office; thence along said east line of lot 3, n 45°07'49” w a 

distance of 451.17 feet to the east line of lot 2, block 4 of said Midway First addition; 

thence along said east line of lot 2, N 00°09'05” W a distance of 774.65 feet to the said 

point of beginning. 

 

Said tract contains 2,751,130 s.f. Or 63.157 acres, more or less. 

  

           3.  Pursuant to section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, the City 

Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a report as to the general nature, 

purpose and feasibility of the proposed improvement and an estimate of the probable cost 

of the improvement. 

 

 4.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 5 of 21 

 

                                                            

                   President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

________________ 

City Administrator 

 

Date of Passage:   February 2, 2016 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 6 of 21 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 7 of 21 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 8 of 21 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 9 of 21 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 10 of 21 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 11 of 21 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ENGINEER'S REPORT AND 

AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF THE DETAILED PLANS 

AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

IMPROVEMENT IN STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 204 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

1. That the report of the City Engineer with respect to the general nature, purpose, 

and feasibility of the proposed improvement and the estimate of the probable cost of the 

work to be done in Street Improvement District No. 204 (Project #2016-06), as required 

by section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, and hereto filed in the office of 

the City Administrator, is hereby accepted and approved and the proposed improvement 

project within said District is hereby determined and declared to be feasible.  

 

2. The probable costs of the of the improvement project are estimated to be as 

follows: 

 a. Construction costs:              $2,218,163.00  

 b. Other costs including necessary and reasonable 

change orders; engineering, fiscal agents’ and 

attorneys’ fees; cost of publication of legal notices; 

printing of warrant bonds; and all expenses incurred 

in the making of the improvement and levy of 

assessments therefor:    

 

 

 

 

$776,357.05 

         c. Total estimated costs of the improvement:              $2,994,520.05 

 

3. The Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare detailed plans and 

specifications for the project to be constructed. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 12 of 21 

 

 

4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February 2016. 

     

     ________________________________                                                                          

     President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 _______________                                                    

City Administrator 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 13 of 21 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 204 

PROJECT # 2016-06 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 204 (Project # 2016-06) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February, 2016. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 14 of 21 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 15 of 21 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 16 of 21 

 
RESOLUTION DETERMINING SUFFICIENCY OF FORMS OF PETITION, WAIVER 

AND CONSENT TO ASSESSMENT FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT  

DISTRICT NO. 204 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of Mandan, North Dakota: 

 

 1. The City having received and filed executed written forms of Petition, Waiver 

and Consent to Assessment executed by VE Land Company and The Evangelical Lutheran Good 

Samaritan, the owners of a majority of property area, for the improvement in and for Street 

Improvement District No. 204, Project No. 2016-06("the District"), and true and correct copies of 

said executed forms being attached hereto, it is hereby determined that said forms are signed by 

the owners of a majority of the area of property included within the District. 

 

 2. This Board is authorized to cause the improvement in and for the District to be 

made, and to levy and collect assessments therefore. 

 

 Dated this 2
nd

 Day of February 2016 

       

                                                                                     

      President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 17 of 21 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 18 of 21 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 204 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 204 (Project # 

2016-06) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

February 2nd, 2016, and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now 

on file in the office of the City Engineer. 

 

 2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 

  

                                               “ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 

                                  STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 204 

                                                MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 

 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 
sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until Tuesday, March 1st, 2016 at 

10:00 a.m., local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill 
needed for the new construction of storm sewer mains, asphalt streets, concrete 
curb and gutter and street lights and related work in accordance with the plans and 
specifications for Street Improvement District No. 204 (Project  # 2016-06),  for the 
City of Mandan.  The Work consists of all labor, skill, and materials required to 
properly construct the improvement. 
 
 Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use 
may secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These 

http://www.questcdn.com/


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 19 of 21 

 
documents may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” 
tab and by entering Quest Project Number #4254403 on the “Search Projects” page.  
For assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at 
(952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be 
obtained from the City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2

nd
 Avenue Northwest, 

Mandan, North Dakota 58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. 
If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and 
handling. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., 
local time, Tuesday, March 1st, 2016 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal 
for Street Improvement District No 204.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: City 
Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2

nd
 Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids will 

be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., 
local time, on March 1

st
, 2016.  All bidders are invited to be present at the public 

opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-05 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.2-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by 
the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.2-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 
 
 Work shall be completed on or before the following dates with liquidated 
damages assessed as follows: 
 

mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 20 of 21 

 
 Substantial completion on Project #2016-06 is to be completed no later than 
October 31, 2016.  Substantial completion shall be achieved when all work, except 
the chip seal, is complete and ready for final inspection.  Completion of chip seal 
shall be completed by June 30

th
, 2017. 

 
 Liquidated damages of $500.00 per day will be assessed if any completion 
dates are exceeded. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed, for each District. Liquidated damages will 
continue to accumulate until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents 
further construction.  Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction 
in the Spring of 2017 and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The 
Contractor and his surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be 
deducted from the final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and 
not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, March 15, 2016, at  
5:30 PM, local time, to review the Bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 
recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful Bidder.  The contract 
will be awarded on the basis of the low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a 
responsible and responsive Bidder deemed most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of thirty (30) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 2

nd
 day of February, 2016 

       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: James Neubauer               
                                                                           City Administrator” 
 
 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 204, 

Project No. 2016-06 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 21 of 21 

 
 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, February 2

nd
, 

2016 at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 

recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful bidder, subject to the 

Board finding that filed protests are insufficient to bar the work. 

 

     _________________________________  
                 President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: February 2

nd
, 2016 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To create and allow the assessments of specials related to, 

authorize the required paperwork for the requested project. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

Summary of 2/2/2016 Revisions: I (Justin), in the interest of cutting down on 

redundancy had language in the recommended motion to approve the “Resolution 

Approving the Engineer’s Feasibility Report” instead of having two items; 1) To approve 

the “Feasibility Report” and 2) To approve the “Resolution Approving the Engineer’s 

Report” The engineer’s report is within the body of the Resolution to Approve the 

Engineer’s report. I thought it made sense to do it this way to cut down on redundancy 

and also because the Feasibility report includes everything the ND Century Code requires 

to be approved in the Engineer’s Report. After discussing with other city staff, I realized 

that both approvals must be included in the motion in order to satisfy bonding 

requirements.  

 

The second revision is to correct a typo within the Engineer’s Report to change the 

construction cost estimate to $4,909,597.70 instead of the previously stated 

$4,909,587.70   

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: January 28, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider approving the  Feasibility Report and to 

approve of the Resolutions creating the district, 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and 

Specifications, and Resolution of Necessity for 

Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 

2015-06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

 

  

 REVISED 2/2/2016 New Business No. 2 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 2 of 14 

 

The section of Old Red Trail between Highland Road and 40
th

 Avenue NW is in poor 

shape and is becoming insufficient to handle the volumes of traffic due to the new 

development in that area. The condition of this section was considered inadequate by the 

condition assessment study done in 2012.  

 

The city has been approved by the ND Department of Transportation (DOT) within their 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to reconstruct Old Red Trail from Highland 

Road to 40
h
 Avenue NW in 2016. The DOT has pledged up to $3.2M dollars of funding 

for this project. 

 

Since early last year, the city has been working with KLJ to put together plans and 

specifications for this project. KLJ recently completed those documents as well as a 

construction cost estimate based on final design of the project and sent them into the 

DOT for review and approval. The DOT has indicated that this project is on schedule for 

the bids to be opened through their bid system on March 18
th

.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Resolution creating district 

2. District Map 

3. Feasibility Report  

4. Resolution Approving Engineer’s Report 

5. Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications 

6. Resolution of Necessity 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Based on the estimate of cost included with your documentation, 

the cost of the project would be $4,909,597.70, engineering and administration will add 

$1,718,359.20, bringing the total to $6,627,956.90.  

 

There are several different sources of funding for this project, most notably, the $3.2M 

that will come from federal funds. That leaves over $3.4M to be paid for by local funds. 

Based on the estimate, the breakdown for local funds to pay for the balance of the project 

are as follows; 

 
The $1.5M estimated to be paid by special assessments would be spread over the 

benefitting properties identified within the district map. City staff is currently working out 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 3 of 14 

 

the fine details of the recommended per lot allocation within this district. Staff’s approach 

is to spread units over all lots as well as have a commercial impact amount that would be 

assessed only to commercial and industrial properties. With this approach, there are more 

factors involved than were addressed in the recently adopted assessment policy, but the 

approach does fundamentally agree with the new policy.  

 

With this approach, recommended per lot assessments look to be in the range of $1,250-

$1,750 for residential properties nearest to the project and $500-$1,000 for residential 

properties that benefit but not as directly. For the commercial and industrial properties, 

the per lot assessment amounts recommended will be determined by area of the property.  

 

City staff’s duty is to recommend the allocation of special assessments of benefitting 

properties, the final allocation of assessments will be determined by city commission at 

the conclusion of the project after a review and approval by the special assessment 

commission also done at the conclusion of the project.The verication of special 

assessments is expected to take place in the fall of 2017.      

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports moving forward with the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the Feasibility Report and to approve of the 

Resolutions creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and 

Specifications, and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, 

Project No. 2015-06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 4 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION CREATING 

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 205   

Project No. 2015-06 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 

 1.  There is hereby created Street Improvement District No. 205 (the 

“District”)(Project# 2015-06) of the City of Mandan for the purpose of making an 

improvement project of the type specified in Section 40-22-01(2), N.D.C.C., to improve 

those parts of the municipal street system listed below.  The improvement to said streets 

within this improvement district shall include, but not be limited to, Old Red Trail NW 

from 500’ east of Highland Road NW to 200’ west of 40
th

 Avenue NW, and includes 

street construction, installation of curb and gutter, concrete street, storm sewer, street 

lights, shared use path and related work.   

 

 2.  Consultation with respect thereto having been had with the City Engineer, as to 

the property to be benefitted by said improvement project and the most practical size, 

form and location of said District, said District shall include all the lots, tracts and parcels 

of land lying within the City of Mandan and its additions within the following boundary 

lines: namely:   

 

The following lots and blocks are included in said District: 

 
All of ROUGRIDER HOMESTEAD ADDITION, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton 
County, North Dakota. 

All of ROUGHRIDER ESTATES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of OLD RED TRAIL STORAGE ADDITION, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton 
County, North Dakota. 

All of ADDIE’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County North Dakota. 

All of WEST HILLS ESTATES FIRST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of WEST HILLS ESTATES SECOND, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 

All of WEST HILLS ESTATES THIRD, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 

All of WEST HILLS ESTATES FOURTH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 5 of 14 

 
All of VENUTRES 1

ST
, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of CROWN POINT, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of WEST RIVER 1
st

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of WEST RIVER 2
nd

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of WEST RIVER 3
rd

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of SCHOOL DISTRICT 6
th

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 1
st

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 2
nd

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 3
rd

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 4th, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 5th, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 6th, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 7
th

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of TRAIL WEST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of TRAIL WEST 2, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of TRAIL WEST 3, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of ELMSHAVEN 1
st

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of DIANA’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of DEBBIE’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of BAKER’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of DEVELOPERS WEST ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of DEVELOPERS WEST ACRES 2ND, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 1ST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 3, MANDAN IND. PARK 1ST, according to the recorded plat 
thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 2ND, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 6 of 14 

 
All of MANDAN IND. PARK 3

RD
, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 

Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 4
TH

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 5TH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 6
TH

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 7
TH

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 8TH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 9TH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 10TH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of SCOTT’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of PATTIE’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of Lots 23 thru 30, SUNSET ACRES 1ST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton 
County, North Dakota. 

All of Lots 1 thru 7, and Lots 17 thru 18, SUNVIEW HEIGHTS, according to the recorded plat 
thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

Auditor’s Lots A thru D, and one unplatted parcel, lying in the SE ¼ of Sec. 7 of Township 139 
North, Range 81 West, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

Auditor’s Lots 3, G and H in the SW ¼ of Sec. 8 of Township 139 North, Range 81 West, 
according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

Lots 1 and 1A of Block 2 in the NE ¼ of Sec. 17 of Township 139 North, Range 81 West, 
according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

  

           3.  Pursuant to section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, the City 

Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a report as to the general nature, 

purpose and feasibility of the proposed improvement and an estimate of the probable cost 

of the improvement. 

 

 4.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 7 of 14 

 

                                                            

                   President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

________________ 

City Administrator 

 

Date of Passage:   February 2, 2016 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 8 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 9 of 14 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 10 of 14 

 

 RESOLUTION APPROVING ENGINEER'S REPORT AND 

AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF THE DETAILED PLANS 

AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

IMPROVEMENT IN STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 205 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

1. That the report of the City Planning and Engineering Director with respect to the 

general nature, purpose, and feasibility of the proposed improvement and the estimate of 

the probable cost of the work to be done in Street Improvement District No. 205 (Project 

#2015-06), as required by section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, and 

hereto filed in the office of the City Administrator, is hereby accepted and approved and 

the proposed improvement project within said District is hereby determined and declared 

to be feasible.  

 

2. The probable costs of the of the improvement project are estimated to be as 

follows: 

 a. Construction costs:              $4,909,597.70  

 b. Other costs including necessary and reasonable 

change orders; engineering, fiscal agents’ and 

attorneys’ fees; cost of publication of legal notices; 

printing of warrant bonds; and all expenses incurred 

in the making of the improvement and levy of 

assessments therefor:    

 

 

 

 

$1,718,359.20 

         c. Total estimated costs of the improvement:              $6,627,956.90 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 11 of 14 

 

3. The Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare detailed plans and 

specifications for the project to be constructed. 

 

4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February 2016. 

     

     ________________________________                                                                          

     President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 _______________                                                    

City Administrator 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 12 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 205 

PROJECT # 2015-06 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 205 (Project # 2015-06) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February, 2016. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 13 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARING THE NECESSITY OF AN 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT IN AND FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT  

DISTRICT NO. 205 OF THE CITY OF MANDAN 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota (the "City") as follows: 

 

1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that it is necessary for the City to 

construct make an improvement of the type specified in Section 40-22-01(2), North 

Dakota Century Code (N.D.C.C.), in and for Street Improvement District No. 205 (the 

"District") of said City.  Said improvement shall include, concrete street reconstruction, 

installation of curb and gutter, storm sewer, street lights, and related work, as well as all 

other work and materials which are necessary or reasonably incidental to the completion 

of the project; all in accordance with and as described in the resolution creating said 

District, and the Engineer's Report.  Improvements will take place primarily on Old Red 

Trail and connecting side streets.  

 

2. With regard to such improvement, the City proposes to enter an agreement with 

the North Dakota Department of Transportation Under such proposed agreement, the City 

will be obligated to pay approximately $3,373,436.78 of the total cost of the improvement 

and the balance of such total cost will be paid by federal and state funds. The cost which 

the City will be obligated to pay under the proposed agreement will be paid from sources 

as follows: 

  

 a. Approximately $1,502,365.52 or 44% of the City's cost will be paid for by 

special assessments to be levied against the respective lots, tracts and parcels of land 

within said improvement District benefited by the improvement in amounts proportionate 

to and not exceeding such benefits; and 

  

 b. The balance of such cost will be paid by City sales tax funds, Hub City 

Funds,  and by general taxation of all the taxable property in the City. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Feasibility Report and to approve of the Resolutions 

creating the district, approving Engineer’s Report, approving Plans and Specifications, 

and Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-

06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 14 of 14 

 

 

3. The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause this resolution, 

together with a map of the City showing the improvement district,  which is attached 

hereto, to be published once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in the official 

newspaper of the City. 

 

4. The owners of property within said improvement District and liable to be 

specially assessed for said improvement shall be afforded the opportunity to file with the 

City Administrator within thirty (30) days after the first publication of this resolution, 

written protests against the adoption of this resolution, which written protests must 

describe the property which is the subject of the protest.  The Board of City 

Commissioners shall, at its next meeting after the expiration of said period, to wit March 

15, 2016 at 5:30 o'clock p.m., meet at the City Hall, 205 2
nd

 Avenue N.W., Mandan, ND, 

to hear and determine the sufficiency of any of the protests so filed and to take such other 

and further action with reference to said improvement District as may then be deemed 

necessary and expedient. 

 

5. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February, 2016. 

 

                         

      President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

                             

City Administrator 

 

 

Publication Dates:  February 5 & February 12, 2016 

Map of District Must also be Published 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To create and allow the assessments of specials related to, 

authorize the required paperwork for the requested project. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The section of Old Red Trail between Highland 

Road and 40
th

 Avenue NW is in poor shape and is becoming insufficient to handle the 

volumes of traffic due to the new development in that area. The condition of this section 

was considered inadequate by the condition assessment study done in 2012.  

 

The city has been approved by the ND Department of Transportation (DOT) within their 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to reconstruct Old Red Trail from Highland 

Road to 40
h
 Avenue NW in 2016. The DOT has pledged up to $3.2M dollars of funding 

for this project. 

 

Since early last year, the city has been working with KLJ to put together plans and 

specifications for this project. KLJ recently completed those documents as well as a 

construction cost estimate based on final design of the project and sent them into the 

DOT for review and approval. The DOT has indicated that this project is on schedule for 

the bids to be opened through their bid system on March 18
th

.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Resolution creating district 

2. District Map 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: January 28, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider approving the Resolution creating 

district, approving Resolution approving 

Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans 

and Specifications, approving Resolution 

determining sufficiency of petition, approving 

feasibility report and Resolution of Necessity for 

Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 

2015-06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

 

  

New Business No. 2 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 2 of 14 

 

3. Engineering’s Feasibility Report  

4. Resolution Approving Engineer’s Report 

5. Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications 

6. Resolution of Necessity 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Based on the estimate of cost included with your documentation, 

the cost of the project would be $4,909,597.70, engineering and administration will add 

$1,718,359.20, bringing the total to $6,627,956.90.  

 

There are several different sources of funding for this project, most notably, the $3.2M 

that will come from federal funds. That leaves over $3.4M to be paid for by local funds. 

Based on the estimate, the breakdown for local funds to pay for the balance of the project 

are as follows; 

 
The $1.5M estimated to be paid by special assessments would be spread over the 

benefitting properties identified within the district map. City staff is currently working out 

the fine details of the recommended per lot allocation within this district. Staff’s approach 

is to spread units over all lots as well as have a commercial impact amount that would be 

assessed only to commercial and industrial properties. With this approach, there are more 

factors involved than were addressed in the recently adopted assessment policy, but the 

approach does fundamentally agree with the new policy.  

 

With this approach, recommended per lot assessments look to be in the range of $1,250-

$1,750 for residential properties nearest to the project and $500-$1,000 for residential 

properties that benefit but not as directly. For the commercial and industrial properties, 

the per lot assessment amounts recommended will be determined by area of the property.  

 

City staff’s duty is to recommend the allocation of special assessments of benefitting 

properties, the final allocation of assessments will be determined by city commission at 

the conclusion of the project after a review and approval by the special assessment 

commission also done at the conclusion of the project.The verication of special 

assessments is expected to take place in the fall of 2017.      



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 3 of 14 

 

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports moving forward with the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve of the Resolution creating district, 

Resolution approving Engineer’s Feasibility Report, Resolution approving Plans and 

Specifications, and approve Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 

205, Project No. 2015-06 (Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 4 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION CREATING 

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 205   

Project No. 2015-06 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 

 1.  There is hereby created Street Improvement District No. 205 (the 

“District”)(Project# 2015-06) of the City of Mandan for the purpose of making an 

improvement project of the type specified in Section 40-22-01(2), N.D.C.C., to improve 

those parts of the municipal street system listed below.  The improvement to said streets 

within this improvement district shall include, but not be limited to, Old Red Trail NW 

from 500’ east of Highland Road NW to 200’ west of 40
th

 Avenue NW, and includes 

street construction, installation of curb and gutter, concrete street, storm sewer, street 

lights, shared use path and related work.   

 

 2.  Consultation with respect thereto having been had with the City Engineer, as to 

the property to be benefitted by said improvement project and the most practical size, 

form and location of said District, said District shall include all the lots, tracts and parcels 

of land lying within the City of Mandan and its additions within the following boundary 

lines: namely:   

 

The following lots and blocks are included in said District: 

 
All of ROUGRIDER HOMESTEAD ADDITION, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton 
County, North Dakota. 

All of ROUGHRIDER ESTATES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of OLD RED TRAIL STORAGE ADDITION, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton 
County, North Dakota. 

All of ADDIE’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County North Dakota. 

All of WEST HILLS ESTATES FIRST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of WEST HILLS ESTATES SECOND, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 

All of WEST HILLS ESTATES THIRD, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 5 of 14 

 
All of WEST HILLS ESTATES FOURTH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 

All of VENUTRES 1
ST

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of CROWN POINT, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of WEST RIVER 1
st

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of WEST RIVER 2nd, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of WEST RIVER 3rd, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of SCHOOL DISTRICT 6
th

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 1
st

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 2
nd

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 3rd, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 4th, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 5th, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 6th, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of MEADOWS 7
th

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of TRAIL WEST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of TRAIL WEST 2, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of TRAIL WEST 3, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of ELMSHAVEN 1st, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of DIANA’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of DEBBIE’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of BAKER’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of DEVELOPERS WEST ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of DEVELOPERS WEST ACRES 2ND, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, 
North Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 1ST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 3, MANDAN IND. PARK 1ST, according to the recorded plat 
thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 6 of 14 

 
All of MANDAN IND. PARK 2ND, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 3
RD

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 4
TH

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 5TH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 6
TH

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 7
TH

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 8TH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 9TH, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of MANDAN IND. PARK 10
TH

, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North 
Dakota. 

All of SCOTT’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of PATTIE’S ACRES, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

All of Lots 23 thru 30, SUNSET ACRES 1ST, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton 
County, North Dakota. 

All of Lots 1 thru 7, and Lots 17 thru 18, SUNVIEW HEIGHTS, according to the recorded plat 
thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

Auditor’s Lots A thru D, and one unplatted parcel, lying in the SE ¼ of Sec. 7 of Township 139 
North, Range 81 West, according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

Auditor’s Lots 3, G and H in the SW ¼ of Sec. 8 of Township 139 North, Range 81 West, 
according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

Lots 1 and 1A of Block 2 in the NE ¼ of Sec. 17 of Township 139 North, Range 81 West, 
according to the recorded plat thereof, Morton County, North Dakota. 

  

           3.  Pursuant to section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, the City 

Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a report as to the general nature, 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 7 of 14 

 

purpose and feasibility of the proposed improvement and an estimate of the probable cost 

of the improvement. 

 

 4.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 

                                                            

                   President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

________________ 

City Administrator 

 

Date of Passage:   February 2, 2016 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 8 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 9 of 14 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 10 of 14 

 

 RESOLUTION APPROVING ENGINEER'S REPORT AND 

AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF THE DETAILED PLANS 

AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

IMPROVEMENT IN STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 205 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

1. That the report of the City Planning and Engineering Director with respect to the 

general nature, purpose, and feasibility of the proposed improvement and the estimate of 

the probable cost of the work to be done in Street Improvement District No. 205 (Project 

#2015-06), as required by section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, and 

hereto filed in the office of the City Administrator, is hereby accepted and approved and 

the proposed improvement project within said District is hereby determined and declared 

to be feasible.  

 

2. The probable costs of the of the improvement project are estimated to be as 

follows: 

 a. Construction costs:              $4,909,587.70  

 b. Other costs including necessary and reasonable 

change orders; engineering, fiscal agents’ and 

attorneys’ fees; cost of publication of legal notices; 

printing of warrant bonds; and all expenses incurred 

in the making of the improvement and levy of 

assessments therefor:    

 

 

 

 

$1,718,359.20 

         c. Total estimated costs of the improvement:              $6,627,956.90 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 11 of 14 

 

3. The Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare detailed plans and 

specifications for the project to be constructed. 

 

4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February 2016. 

     

     ________________________________                                                                          

     President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 _______________                                                    

City Administrator 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 12 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 205 

PROJECT # 2015-06 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 205 (Project # 2015-06) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February, 2016. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 13 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARING THE NECESSITY OF AN 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT IN AND FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT  

DISTRICT NO. 205 OF THE CITY OF MANDAN 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota (the "City") as follows: 

 

1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that it is necessary for the City to 

construct make an improvement of the type specified in Section 40-22-01(2), North 

Dakota Century Code (N.D.C.C.), in and for Street Improvement District No. 205 (the 

"District") of said City.  Said improvement shall include, concrete street reconstruction, 

installation of curb and gutter, storm sewer, street lights, and related work, as well as all 

other work and materials which are necessary or reasonably incidental to the completion 

of the project; all in accordance with and as described in the resolution creating said 

District, and the Engineer's Report.  Improvements will take place primarily on Old Red 

Trail and connecting side streets.  

 

2. With regard to such improvement, the City proposes to enter an agreement with 

the North Dakota Department of Transportation Under such proposed agreement, the City 

will be obligated to pay approximately $3,373,436.78 of the total cost of the improvement 

and the balance of such total cost will be paid by federal and state funds. The cost which 

the City will be obligated to pay under the proposed agreement will be paid from sources 

as follows: 

  

 a. Approximately $1,502,365.52 or 44% of the City's cost will be paid for by 

special assessments to be levied against the respective lots, tracts and parcels of land 

within said improvement District benefited by the improvement in amounts proportionate 

to and not exceeding such benefits; and 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 205, Project No. 2015-06 

(Old Red Trail Reconstruction). 

Page 14 of 14 

 

 b. The balance of such cost will be paid by City sales tax funds, Hub City 

Funds,  and by general taxation of all the taxable property in the City. 

 

3. The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause this resolution, 

together with a map of the City showing the improvement district,  which is attached 

hereto, to be published once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in the official 

newspaper of the City. 

 

4. The owners of property within said improvement District and liable to be 

specially assessed for said improvement shall be afforded the opportunity to file with the 

City Administrator within thirty (30) days after the first publication of this resolution, 

written protests against the adoption of this resolution, which written protests must 

describe the property which is the subject of the protest.  The Board of City 

Commissioners shall, at its next meeting after the expiration of said period, to wit March 

15, 2016 at 5:30 o'clock p.m., meet at the City Hall, 205 2
nd

 Avenue N.W., Mandan, ND, 

to hear and determine the sufficiency of any of the protests so filed and to take such other 

and further action with reference to said improvement District as may then be deemed 

necessary and expedient. 

 

5. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 2
nd

 day of February, 2016. 

 

                         

      President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

                             

City Administrator 

 

 

Publication Dates:  February 5 & February 12, 2016 

Map of District Must also be Published 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Update the commission on recycling numbers and open up 

discussions on issues we are seeing with the new program. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: On January 2, 2016 the city’s single sort recycling 

program commenced, first time collection for all residents was completed on January 14. 

At that time over 58 ton of recyclable materials were kept out of the landfill.  As of 

January 29, we have collected over 96 ton of recyclables. We are seeing about 50% 

participation after the first month of the program. Along with the moderate success, come 

various issues when implementing a new program.  Open for discussion are the following 

items of which we received phone calls expressing concern: 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Recycling items for discussion. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A  

 

STAFF IMPACT: Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Attorney Brown has reviewed my agenda documentation. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend approving the changes to the recycling program 

as presented and discussed. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the changes to the recycling program as 

presented and discussed. 

 

 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: January 26, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Consider various recycling items. 

 

  

New Business #3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: February 2, 2016 

Subject: Consider various recycling items. 

Page 2 of 2 

 

CONCERN 

 

# ON LIST RECOMMENDATION 

Doesn’t want to participate, 

pick up tote. 

115 on list, just don’t want to 

participate, some are elderly 

or physically unable or they 

have no room for the tote.  

Continue to monitor calls 

from residents and encourage 

them to try the program and 

Public Works will call to 

confirm resident status again 

in June to bring back to the 

commission. 

We want to share a tote. 36 on list, mainly want to 

participate just don’t think 

they will generate enough and 

want to share with rest of 

complex. 

Most of these are duplex calls, 

understanding that they will 

still be billed for the totes, 

sharing totes could be 

allowed. A list would be 

prepared for Dakota Sanitation 

to collect additional totes. 

Can I get a smaller tote? 11 indicated they wanted a 

smaller tote, a couple said 

they would not participate if 

they didn’t get one. 

Dakota Sanitation does not 

have additional 65 gallon totes 

on hand and would have to 

order.  The number of requests 

at this time is small, we will 

continue to monitor and can 

be brought back to the 

commission again in June. 

Can I get an extra tote? 2 requested an extra tote, 

welcomed the program and 

will generate enough to fill 

two. 

For the time being, the extra 

tote could be provided.  We 

can monitor and report back in 

June to the commission. 

I am elderly and physically 

unable to move the tote. 

24 stated they were elderly or 

would have trouble getting 

tote to curb. 

Dakota Sanitation can make 

arrangements with the resident 

for a special case collection 

only if the City obtains a 

medical note from the 

resident, similar to what 

Bismarck requires. 

I can’t get my garbage to the 

curb and have alley access. 

3 left information, received 

more calls. 

If circumstances prevent 

curbside placement of your 

tote please call Dakota 

Sanitation for an on-site 

assessment. Reasonable 

accommodations for alley pick 

up will be looked at in June by 

the commission.   

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1233 

 

An Ordinance to Void Ordinance No. 1218 and Amend and Reenact 

Section 117-1-4 related to water meters 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1218 added language to the code requiring that water meters be 

installed according to installation instructions provided by the city, and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent amendments were made to the code that did not incorporate the language 

contained in Ordinance No. 1218, and 

  

WHEREAS, this ordinance provides language that replaces the language added with Ordinance 

No. 1218. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Ordinance No 1218 is voided. 

 

Section 2.  Section 117-1-4 is amended to read: 

 

Sec. 117-1-4. - Ownership and control of water meter and turn on and off of service.  

 

(a) All water meters shall be owned and controlled of the city and may, at the sole discretion of the 

city, be installed, inspected, maintained, repaired, removed or replaced. The city may contract for 

the installation, inspection, maintenance, repair, removal or replacement of water meters. The city 

may authorize private contractors, hired by a developer or builder, to install water meters.  

 

(b) Only employees of the city or authorized contractors may turn on or off water service to a 

property. Should an unauthorized person turn on or off water service to a property or otherwise 

tamper with a water system valve, that person is subject to the penalty provisions of section 117-

7-4.  

 

(c) Prior to installing a water meter, a contractor shall obtain a current copy of the water meter 

installation instructions from the city.  Water meters must be installed according to the detailed 

installation instructions provided by the city.  Any deviation from the specified installation 

instructions must be approved in advance in writing by the city. 

 

Section 3.  Section 117-1-4 is readopted as amended. 

 

_____________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:       January 19, 2016 

Second Consideration and Final Passage:    February 2, 2016 

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 1 

Deleted: 6



 ORDINANCE NO. 1234 
 
 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

 Sections 4-1-3, 4-2-20(c) and 4-2-20(d)(2) of the  

Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan 

Relating to Hours of Alcohol Sales 

 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 4-1-3.  Hours and time of sale of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan relating 

to hours of alcohol sales is hereby amended and re-enacted to read as follows: 

 

     Section 4-1-3.  Hours and time of sale.   

 

 A person may not sell or dispense, or permit the sale, dispensation or consumption, of alcoholic 

beverages on licensed premises at any time when prohibited by state law or city ordinances, unless 

otherwise permitted by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction.  A person may not dispense or 

permit the consumption of alcoholic beverages on a licensed premises between 1:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m. 

on Sundays, and between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. of all other days of the week.  All drinks, 

glasses and beverage containers must be collected and emptied or disposed of as soon as practicable at the 

legally required time of closing or immediately thereafter.    

 

 Section 4-2-20.  Sunday alcoholic beverage permit. 

 

 (c) Application.   An eligible applicant may make written application to the city 

administrator for such a permit to authorize the applicant to dispense alcoholic beverages and to conduct a 

dance on its premises between the hours of 12:00 noon 11:00 a.m. on the specified Sunday and 1:00 a.m. 

on the following Monday.  The applicant shall furnish such information as may be required by the city 

administrator upon forms furnished by the city.  The application must be accompanied by a fee of five 

dollars as established by resolution for each requested Sunday. 

 

 Section 4-2-20(d)(2).  

 

 (d) Conditions.  All Sunday alcoholic beverage permits are subject to the following 

restrictions and conditions: 

 

(2) Dancing and the dispensing of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted only between the 

hours of 12:00 noon 11:00 a.m. on Sunday and 1:00 a.m. on the following Monday.   The 

general public may be permitted to participate in the consumption of alcoholic beverages 

distributed under the authority of this permit.   

 

By:___________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

 

Attest: 

 

___________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

 

First Consideration:    January 19, 2016  

Second Consideration  

and Final Passage:   February 2, 2016  

Publication Date:  February 26, 2016   

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 2 


	Agenda February 2, 2016
	Minutes January 19, 2016
	The Year of :WE SUPPORT THE BADGE" proclamation - 2016
	National Kids to Parks Day Proclamation
	Correction in 2015 True & Full Value - Mike & Gwen Brady; Lower Heart River Water Resource District
	Spring Clean Up Week proclamation
	Ad for Bids - Big Sky Sewer Extension project
	Ad for Bids Water Main replacement 2016
	Our Place Motorcycle Club games of chance at HIT Inc.
	Ronald McDonald House games of chance at Signature Events
	Unused Annual Leave Carryover - Kim Fettig
	Street Improvement District 204, Project 2016-06 Lakewood 9th Addn.
	Street Improvement District 205, Project 2015-06 Old Red Trail Reconstruction - revised
	Street Improvement District 205, Project 2015-06 Old Red Trail Reconstruction
	Various Recycling items
	Ord. 1233 - Water Meter installation
	Ord. 1234 - Amend and Re-enact Hours of Alcohol Sales



